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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The directors (“Directors”) of the BaWang International (Group)
Holding Limited (the “Company”) report that the total revenue of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019 was approximately
RMB113.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 10.2%
from approximately RMB126.0 million for the same period last year.
The operating loss of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 was approximately RMB17.8
million, as compared with the operating loss of approximately
RMB11.4 million for the same period last year.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the net loss of the Group
was approximately RMB18.6 million, as compared with the net loss
of approximately RMB11.4 million for the same period last year.

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this report.

During the period under review, the Group was operating under the
value-chain-oriented business model to control the costs of sales and
administration.

During the period under review, to expand the distribution channels
to cover the unexplored market so as to enhance the sales of various
branded products, the Group carried out marketing activity known as
“Mine Field Clearing” in the conventional sales channels across the
country. As at 30 June 2019, a total of approximately 54 new
distributors have been recruited.

During the period under review, to enhance the sales of various
branded products, we successfully upgraded the packaging of two
Bawang branded series for the conventional sales channels. The new
packagings have a trendy and professional image, which also
successfully helped the creation of a social media celebrity version of
Bawang hair-care products for sales through the conventional
channel.

Additionally, we successfully developed a sales channel for college
students. Leveraging on the “College Students Advertising Festival” (X
B2 A BT Ef) and cooperating with some colleges, we introduced
Bawang branded products to the campuses which publicized and
educated the young people to understand the concept of haircare via
herbal shampoo products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBmRX DM

Through the “China International Comics Festival Expo” (F7 K8
EEEEE), the Group has engaged in intensive cooperation with
some major animation companies. A comic book known as “Herbal
Fairytale” has been released and a revamped comic App has been
launched for promoting the Bawang brand in the form of comics and
animation, which enhanced and reinforced the consumers’
understanding of the concept to do haircare through traditional
Chinese medicine shampoos and the different functionalities of

various Bawang branded products.

In April 2019, the Group selected a popular Chinese style singer, Mr.
Huo Zun (ZH), as our short-term image and brand ambassador for
Bawang branded shampoo and hair care products. We made full use
of the image of the new brand ambassador to attract consumers’
attention via social media platforms such as Weibo and WeChat,
advertisements posted in city metros and at the points of sales with
the theme to promote Bawang’s anti-hair fall shampoos as national
products. We believe that the marketing strategy of appointing young
brand ambassadors to act as key opinion leaders on social media
platforms has made an impact on the promotion of our products.

To further motivate the Group’s distributors and sales team, incentive
leisure travel scheme for the participating distributors and internal
staff members was offered for free to those who had completed the
predetermined sales target within a specified period. During the
period under review, eligible staff members and distributors who
participated in the scheme travelled to five selected destinations.

As at 30 June 2019, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 794 distributors and seven KA retailers,
covering 26 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the products of the Group were also sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia.

During the period under review, the Group marketed the branded
shampoo products, “Royal Wind”, with the theme “Let’s chase for
the wind rather than wait for the wind”. As at 30 June 2019, the Royal
Wind brand distribution network comprised approximately 185
distributors and seven KA retailers, covering 26 provinces and four
municipalities in China.

Our Litao products mainly comprised shower gels and laundry
detergents, targeting consumers living in the second-tier or third-tier
cities in China. The Group’s goal is to widen the market coverage in
China. As at 30 June 2019, the Litao products distribution network
comprised approximately 95 distributors, covering 26 provinces and
four municipalities in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Our Herborn Chinese herbal skincare product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and are dedicated to pursue a healthy and natural
lifestyle. As at 30 June 2019, the sales and distribution network for
the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products comprised
approximately 35 distributors covering 26 provinces and four
municipalities in China.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has established online flagship stores
for our Bawang, Royal Wind, Herborn and Little King branded
products on 16 online retailing platforms in China. We will deepen our
efforts in the development of this channel.

During the period under review, we have obtained, renewed, and/or
are in possession of the following certificates and/or accreditations:

— our Chinese herbal hair care shampoo products and skincare
series shower gel products have been recognised as “New Hi-
tech Products of Guangdong Province” (B3 & & & iiTE )
by the Guangdong Provincial New Hi-tech Enterprise
Association for a period of three years until the end of 2020;

— the permit for production of cosmetic products, which was
issued by Guangdong Provincial Food and Drug Administration,
is valid until May 2021;

—  three Bawang branded series shampoos were again recognised
as “The 2018 New High-Tech Products in Guangdong” by the
Guangdong Provincial Science and Technology Bureau in
December 2018 for a period of three years until the end of
2021;

— our High-tech enterprise certificate has been renewed for a
period of three years until the end of 2021;

— our production process for haircare and skincare products has
been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022 as to
meet the requirements of US FDA CFSAN by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2008;

— our production process for haircare and skincare products has
been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022 as to
meet the requirements of 1SO22716:2007 by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines;
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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—  we were awarded the “T-Mall Golden Award 2019” (K54 #252)
certificate by TMALL (X3#) recognising our outstanding logistics
services in March 2019; and

— we were awarded the “Golden Ant Star Award 2018-2019”
certificate by the China (Guangzhou) International Logistic
Equipment & Technology Exhibition Organization Committee in
May 2019.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s revenue
from operations amounted to approximately RMB113.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.2% from approximately
RMB126.0 million for the same period last year. Revenue through the
online sales channel was approximately RMB62.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 7.2% from approximately
RMB58.3 million for the same period last year, but such increase was
partially offset by the decrease in the aggregate revenue generated
from the traditional sales channels.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s core brand,
Bawang, generated a revenue of approximately RMB105.5 million,
which accounted for approximately 93.2% of the Group’s total
revenue, and represented a decrease of approximately 6.0% as
compared with the same period last year.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s branded
Chinese herbal anti-dandruff haircare series, Royal Wind, generated a
revenue of approximately RMB3.2 million, which accounted for
approximately 2.8% of the Group’s total revenue, represented a
decrease of approximately 28.9% as compared with the same period
last year.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s natural-
based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry detergent products
series, Litao, generated a revenue of approximately RMB3.2 million,
which accounted for approximately 2.8% of the Group’s total
revenue, represented a decrease of approximately 33.3% as
compared with the same period last year.

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s branded
Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn, generated a revenue of
approximately RMB1.2 million, which accounted for approximately
1.1% of the Group’s total revenue, represented a decrease of
approximately 70.0% as compared with the same period last year.

- RZZ-HAhE=A HMESHX
5 & 83 B 2010F E W IR 75 4
ERBERIESAmE: &

- RZIZE-NAFHA RMAESHS
B (R M) B0 B W) 07 5% 4 B B il e AR
Z M B H2018-2019F EFH ¥R
THSISHAE &

B 7% 5] B8

BER
HE-_ZT—AEA=Z+HIEA~NEA
AEBREEBRAHDARK11328
Bl REFRPKLEBRANDA
R¥12608 &L 2 7 4102% ° B E
RENEEBHOARBREE T &
EFRPHOARKSBIEETLEATH
7.2% ° 1B 3% £ F+ 18 [Z 1% H th {F 45 R 18 8
EREEBETERIMHIER -

HE-_ZTZT—NAF~A=Z+tBIEA@EA"
AEBZLRE BTIHBRAHAR
10558 &L I AEB BK AW
93.2% MEFRI BT T #6.0% °

HE-_ZT-hFEXA=Z1+HILEAEA"
AEBMHPEELERE  BRHKA
MARBI2ABIL EAEEBLKA
#12.8% RMEFREATIE T 428.9% ©

BE_ZT-NAFRA=ZTHLREA"
AEBEBNAERARERNLENK K
MBEMERBRERRY  BENKAL
ARBI2EETT HIEAEEBKAN
2.8% WMEFEH TFET#33.3% °

HE_Z—NWFX"A=Z+HIL~EAR "
AEBHPEHEEERE  AEENIK
ABMARBI2EE L HIEAEBEIW
AH1.1%  BEF R HR A £70.0% ©



Management Discussion and Analysis

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks, via conventional and/or online sales channels. During the
six months ended 30 June 2019, a summary of our sales revenue in
percentage through different networks and/or channels is as follows:
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Network/Channel 4 RIE Conventional Online Total
B4 ER &5t

(%) (%) (%)

Distributor DHE 35.9 26.0 61.9
Retailer TER 8.9 29.2 38.1
Total &=t 44.8 55.2 100.0

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, our products were also
sold in Hong Kong, Singapore, Thailand and Malaysia. The sales to
these overseas markets accounted for approximately 1.5% of our
total revenue during the six months ended 30 June 2019.

Cost of Sales

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, cost of sales amounted
to approximately RMB65.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB4.1 million (or approximately 5.9%) from
approximately RMB69.9 million during the same period last year. The
overall decrease in cost of sales was primarily due to a decrease in
the volume of production which was driven by lower demand for our
products. As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 increased from approximately 55.5% in
2018 to approximately 58.2%, which was mainly due to an increase
in unit cost incurred in manufacturing overheads resulted from an
increase in depreciation expenses arising from capitalization of
construction in progress commencing from the second half of 2018,
a decrease in write-back of impairment provision for previous year
and an increase in direct labour costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross Profit

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB47.4 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 15.5% from approximately RMB56.1
million for the same period last year. The gross profit margin for the
six months ended 30 June 2019 also decreased from approximately
44.5% in the first half of 2018 to approximately 41.9%. The decrease
in the gross profit margin was mainly attributable to a decrease of
sales volume, which led to an increase in production cost per unit.

Selling and Distribution Costs

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, selling and distribution
costs amounted to approximately RMB53.3 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.7% from approximately RMB54.8 million
for the same period last year. As a percentage of revenue, our selling
and distribution costs for the six months ended 30 June 2019
increased from approximately 43.5% in 2018 to approximately 47.1%
in 2019. The increase was primary due to an increase in advertising
and branding expenses and salaries of sales staff, but was partially
set off by the decrease in travelling expenses and outsourced labour
costs.

Administrative Expenses

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, administrative expenses
amounted to approximately RMB15.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately 14.8% from approximately RMB13.5 million
for the same period last year. The increase was primarily due to an
increase in R&D expenses in new products, exchange loss and
salaries of the administrative staff, but was partially offset by the
decrease in provision for bad debts and general office expenses.

Loss from Operations

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately RMB17.8
million for the six months ended 30 June 2019, as compared with the
operating loss of approximately RMB11.4 million for the same period
last year. The increased operating loss was primarily attributable to
the following factors: (1) a decrease in the revenue; (2) an increase in
production costs; and (3) an increase in administrative expenses.

E7

HE_Z—NFNA=ZFTHILAEA -
AEEBNENTREHDAREITAES
T BEEFRBHAREKS61EH & LA
TR T 8155% - HE/NA =18 1k
NEANEMERR —_Z—N\FLFFHN
H445% TRENZFT-—NFLEFFHO
419% - EFETHEMNETERAZAHNHE
EEMNTREHEREMEEN AL
hne

HERDHERAX

HE_ZT—NFA=Z+TBIXEAR-
HEMDHEAIHARKEZIFEE T &
EFRPHNHDARBASEETH D T
Ho7% BEEBEEME BHEZZ
—NWENAZTHLEANEAANBEE LD
A W EFRBMNLA35%ENEL
A71% HFZREACSHRESNEES
MEHEEAB TEK ARG N - B3
DWEIRE RINB TS BRI D TR

THRER
BE_ZT-NAFRA=ZTAHLEREA"
THRERNHDARKISSEE L REF
REBNHARKIBEAETEMT L
14.8%  EIE MM E B RE R ANH M@
Mgl ELBRAMEREEAET
BRCAEIE N - BB D R AR B AN
DB R YR D PR ©

REBR

AEBEZE-_ZT—NAFAAA=FTHLRX
BMAESKEBERONBEARKITSEE
T MEFRHBHSEEEBEBOARE
MAFEL KLEEBETEXUNTAEY
Z:(NHERARNBLD  QEEXANAIE
e RE@FTEE AN -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, finance costs of
approximately RMBO0.8 million represent the interest on bank
borrowing in the amount of approximately RMB0.33 million (six
months ended 30 June 2018: RMB1,000), and the interest on lease
liabilities in the amount of approximately RMB0.45 million as a result
of the adoption of IFRS16 with effect from 1 January 2019.

Other Income

The Group recorded other income of approximately RMBO0.6 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2019, representing a decrease of
approximately 53.8% from approximately RMB1.3 million for the
same period last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable to
part of the utilities income (which was classified as other income in
the same period last year) was reclassified to set off against the
manufacturing overhead under the cost of sales for the period under
review, thus reducing other income for the period under review.

Income Tax Expense

During the six month periods ended 30 June 2019, the Group had
income tax expense of approximately RMB2,000 (six months ended
30 June 2018: Nil).

Net Loss for the Period from Operations

As a result of the combined effect of the abovementioned factors, the
Group recorded a net loss from operations of approximately
RMB18.6 milion for the six months ended 30 June 2019, as
compared with the net loss from operations of approximately
RMB11.4 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018.

Loss for the Period Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB18.6 million for the six months ended 30 June
2019, as compared with a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB11.4 million for the six months ended
30 June 2018.
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Outlook

The International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) recently downgraded its
forecast on the China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth to 6.2%
for 2019 after having raised it to 6.3% only two months ago. The
reason being that China is still facing downside risks and uncertainty
over the trade war with the United States. Having said that, the
forecast is within the growth target range of 6.0% to 6.5% set by
China.

IMF went on to say that additional policy easing would be warranted
if the trade tensions escalated further, that China could roll out other
fiscal expansion measures to stabilise the economy under a
deteriorating trade scenario, and that the near-term outlook of the
Chinese economy remains particularly uncertain given the potential
for further escalation of the trade tensions.

When formulating the business strategies of the Group, the Directors
tend to be cautious about the future of Chinese economy.

The corporate theme for the rest of 2019 is “30 Years On; Casting
the New Glory.”

For Bawang branded product series, the Group will leverage on the
personal image of our Chinese style singer brand ambassador and
his reputation to develop and expand its market segment to the
younger generation. We will roll out four new Bawang branded
product series with amino acids to capture the unexplored market
and a couple of functional shower gel series to cover the unexplored
product lines. To leverage on the combined festive effects of the 30th
anniversary of the Bawang brand, the Mid-Autumn Festival and the
National Day, we plan to enhance revenue through sales and
promotional activities for our Bawang branded products series in the
major supermarkets. We also plan to have cross-industry
collaboration for production of video commercials to publicize the
Group’s brands.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group always makes
good efforts to promote its brand image to cater for the trendy
lifestyle of young customers. We mainly promote the fragrance
products series of this brand in the second half of 2019, and will sell
our branded products through traditional sales channels, the
exclusive zones inside the contracted supermarkets and the online
flagship stores.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For conventional channels, the Group will continue to deepen
cooperation and interaction with distributors and to carry out channel
building activities known as “Mine Field Clearing”. Leveraging on the
launch of new product series, the Group plans to develop potential
customers in those unexplored markets, to utilize the new products
for integrating various market resources for allocation to each store to
increase sales revenue. The Group will strengthen the management
and supervision of the sales teams whereby the Company and
distributors will mobilize the training teams for carrying out
promotional activities at the point-of-sale. The Group will re-distribute
certain product series, which are customer favourites, from online
sales channels into traditional sales channels so as to enhance sales
volume. Through the reshuffling of the product structures of the
traditional and the online sales channels, the Group hopes to create
favorable competitive advantages to the traditional sales channels. In
terms of investment in product development, the Group plans to
develop a shower gel product line in addition to the existing haircare
products.

As to the online sales channel, the Group hopes to achieve stable
sales growth in future. In the second half of 2019, the Group will
launch a branded 2D animation series to promote our products to the
younger generation, with a view to increasing market share in the
relevant segment. Through marketing video clips and cross-industry
cooperation, we intend to incubate our home-grown social media
celebrities. Through live broadcast of promotional events and publicity
programs, we target to build up the brand loyalty of our young
customers so as to enhance our revenue from online sales channels.

Apart from this, the Group intends to develop a new e-commerce
platform for promoting our business and selling our products via
social media platforms in the second half of this year. Social media is
capable of attracting users of all ages. The Group intends to explore
the potential for expanding its customer segment and increasing
sales by tapping into the connections of its existing customers via
social media platforms.

For production management, we strive to keep our customer satisfied
with the quality of our products. While we maintain the usual quality
of products, we will at the same time continue to reduce spoilages,
lower the production costs, strengthen the turnover of production
materials and minimize the inventory level. We continue to make good
use of our management skills, advanced production equipment and
spare production facilities and capacities for expanding an original
equipment manufacturer (OEM) business. We believe that through
the integration of production resources to achieve greater value
enhancement, we can create more revenue for our shareholders.
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As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility with potential distributors for launching our
branded products to other countries, and will actively exploit and
develop the social e-commerce platform business. The Group is
open to explore further business opportunities with potential overseas
distributors.

As at the date of this report, the Group did not have any outstanding
acquisition opportunity nor was actively exploring business
opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.

Looking forward, the strategic directions to sustain and develop our
business in the present volatile economic environments will focus on
two areas: in the short term, the Group intends to increase its
revenue by exploring new sales channels in household and personal
care (“"HPC”) products in order to regain momentum for sales growth
and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence in the Group; in
the long term, the Group will continue to focus on strengthening its
business model and market positioning to increase its market share
among domestic and international competitors, maintaining a multi-
brand and multi-product strategy in the HPC sector, and becoming a
leader in branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of liquidity
and financial resources is set out below:

Cash and cash equivalents ReERREeEEY
Total loans BB

Total assets BEE

Gearing ratio“t BEBMEBXM
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30 June 31 December

2019 2018
R=ZZF-—hEF RZTE—N\F
AAZ=1TH [ =!
RMB RMB

in million in million
ARBBEER AREBET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (&%)
53.3 65.5

9.7 12.6

260.2 283.2

3.7% 4.3%

Note: Calculated as total loans divided by total assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material Acquisition or Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associated companies during the period
under review.

Events After the Reporting Period

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 30 June 2019 and up
to the date of this report.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in China, with
most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency of the
Group is Renminbi. During the period under review, the Group has
exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or United
States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are mostly
denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in Hong
Kong Dollars if dividends are declared.

The Board is of the view that the Group conducts its business
transactions principally in Renminbi and thus the exchange rate risk
associated with the Group’s daily operations is not significant.

For the period ended 30 June 2019, the Group had not issued any
material financial instruments or entered into any material contracts
for foreign currency hedging purposes. However, the Board wiill
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and is prepared
to take prudent measures such as hedging when required.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2019, the capital commitment for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment of the Group was approximately
RMBO0.3 million.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 June 2019, buildings with carrying values of approximately
RMB3.3 million (as at 30 June 2018: approximately RMB3.6 million)
had been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
As at 30 June 2019, banking facilities of approximately RMB9.7
million were utilised and approximately RMB70.3 million were
unutilised and available for the Group’s future financing.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 30 June 2019, the trade and other payables of the Group were
approximately RMB65.6 million (As at 31 December 2018
approximately RMB81.4 million), which represented a decrease of
19.4%. For the period ended 30 June 2019, trade and other payables
did not include any balances due to related parties.

Bank Borrowings

As at 30 June 2019, bank borrowing of approximately RMB9,650,000
(81 December 2018: approximately RMB12,550,000) bore interest at
fixed rate of 6.09% per annum and was due within one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group will continue to invest in human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group organised
various in-house training classes to strengthen the soft skills of our
staff members such as use of electronic spreadsheets, the principles
of communication and coordination. The Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on rewards and
motivation. We required our senior sales and marketing staff to attend
brand positioning strategy courses, and we required our finance and
accounting staff to attend seminars about the latest accounting
standards, taxation practices and budgetary control.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group employed 566 employees (30 June
2018: 977), consisting of full-time employees and contract personnel
in the PRC and Hong Kong. The total personnel expenses,
comprising wages, salaries and benefits, and equity-settled share-
based payments, amounted to approximately RMB28.1 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2019 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
approximately RMB23.1 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees as at 30 June 2019 and 2018, respectively:
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As at As at

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

R-ZE—N&F RZZE—N\F

AA=+H NA=+H

Full-time employees 2BEES 206 184
Contract personnel EHEE

— Sales persons — {8 88 426

— Others —Efb 272 367

Total headcount HwAE 566 977
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The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong participate in social
insurance contribution plans and the Hong Kong mandatory provident
fund scheme, respectively. Other benefits include performance-based
incentive bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted
under the share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group, and that a
promising career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as
well as a pleasant working environment are essential factors for
maintaining a stable workforce for the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 30 June 2019, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”):

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

Other Information
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HERAROREEETERNERRY
B

Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares of the Company
Company held NG|
Name of director/ BEEAA 21T
chief executive Long/short position in ZTEBRR BAHz
EZ/BEITHRAE ordinary shares Nature of interest HEZER EZEDL
=z ERRPZEF/IXR EmME k% 8B (W8
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR BIR (B 3E1) e P 4% 1A B # 2
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
Bk 1E 85 (5 2) A P 4% 1A B #E 2
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%
HER Sy EmEB A

Interim Report 2019 #¢ —ZT — A FEFHHE



BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited % T R (£H) ERER QT

Other Information

Hit &1

Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (‘Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan
holding 50.43% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station. The remaining 49.57%
of the issued share capital of Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (“Heroic
Hour”). Heroic Hour’s entire issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee
for himself and on behalf of his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of
CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under the age of 18, namely CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN
Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in
Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were

also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by
Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune

Station.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations

Name of director/ Name of
chief executive associated
EZ/BRTHRAR corporation
£ HBLEER
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station
BREUR (M k1)

CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Fortune Station

BRIEE (F&2)

Nature of interest

BRME

Beneficial owner
EmEBA

Interest of children under
the age of 18
AMIBHEF R m

Other
Hth

Interest in controlled corporation

P 1 ) B R

B g -

R #E R BRUJR #5 8 Fortune Station 2 50.43% 2 B %
17 B& 1 - PR BRR 4 4] A& % 75 Fortune Station Ltd.
[Fortune Station | £ 5 /& #71,900,840,000 f% A 7]
A% 19 &9 # 25 © Fortune Station & H $249.57% & %%
7T B A /i Heroic Hour Limited ([Heroic Hour|)
B MMREBEASTARBERENUBEKE
A Heroic Hour®) 2 58 B /TR A o IR BUR 18 A
R T8 756 F % - BDBREEEF - CHEN Li Zi, CHEN
Zheng Sheng * B 1E 32 + & # 2 & Chen Bo Ling Fit
B 25 5 5 89 78.00% Heroic Hour 2 3 17 B& 78 71 4 47
REBRRER -

BREREBEAITARBREASNUBLKER
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1,900,840,000 fix 1A A A 15 #Y &5 »
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
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position EER RHEBEZEF

BIKR BROBE ZEZASHL

Long 20,000 50.43%
e

Long 15,330 38.66%
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Long 19,657 49.57%
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Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 50.43% of the issued share
capital of Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under
the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of
Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. Heroic Hour held approximately
49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, so far as known
to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As at 30 June 2019, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder lE 38 %7 Nature of interestfE == &

Beneficial owner
ExlEBA

Fortune Station

Heroic Hour
BTl % B iz (FFaE1)

Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)

Other Information
H th & iy

MeE

1. B B A Fortune Station B 8 77 i 7N ) 4)50.43% &
HHAAN - ARBURISARUA T AN TLME
%5 45 A #978.00% Heroic Hour & 2 17 B AN 75 1748, 5
52BN BRERR © Heroic Hour# 7 Fortune Station & 2
TR A #9£949.57% ©

2. BREREBEAITEARBREASUBHKESR
Heroic Hour z 2 &0 B % 17 % 78 1 4 4% & 7 Heroic
Hour £ Fortune Station &) 1 25 7 # A #E 2 ©
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NA=Z1TH BMEMARANEMNES
LRERITBRABMHM EREAAAE
ERERBERTBRAR  HREEA K
NA R EEBORE (R E 5 L E GG 5
XVEDEY % 3 ) /OB 47~ 48 B A ) K 18 1
T @RIEEZ R E RO EXVEBEHT7 R
FE87 BPEV R TE B M E AN A M AP Y
B AR (BREEEA LMESF M
FIROIZ TGRSR E MR E W
@ BORR) - R(O)IRIEE T M E R

BR2MGEHRERECLNTHFENELMA

()R 5 BE5F AR E A AR A A AR

i S P o

ARAEERRNVERRAR

<

BARAEREEFHRSTRAEMRA -
RZZE-—NFARA=ZFTH BRERBAEAAA
EERHESTHABIN PRI H SAE AR 15
hEAREE S RS RDIE 336154 T R
BENEREMNEEMAM MBS KA D
T

Approximate

percentage of

issued share

capital of the

Number of ordinary Company
shares of the RAFE
Companyheld E{TRAHZ
BFENAR BEAOHL
ERRROHE (B8
1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
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Other Information
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Name of shareholder iz 3 Z 7 Nature of interest# 5 14+ &

WAN Yuhua (Note 2)
BEEME2)

CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3)
BR & 57 (M4 5E3)

CHEN Li Zi (Note 3)
CHENLi Zi (Bt 313)

CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3)
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Ff 5£3)

CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3)
BR IE 52 (P 5E3)

CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3)
PR 7 = (B =E3)

CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3)
CHEN Bo Ling (Ff5£3)

Interest of children under the age of 18

ENCAE A A F

Beneficiary of a trust (other than
a discretionary trust)

EERam A GEREERT)

Other
Hh

Beneficiary of a trust (other than
a discretionary trust)

ErEX @A (EBIBER)

Other
Hh

Beneficiary of a trust (other than
a disoretionary trust)

ARz A FREET)

Other
Hib

Beneficiary of a trust (other than
a discretionary trust)

ErtXa@m A (EBIFER)

Other
Hh

Beneficiary of a trust (other than
a discretionary trust)

X @A (FBIBER)

Other
Hh

Beneficiary of a trust (other than
a discretionary trust)

ErEXm A FREET)

Other
Hib

Number of ordinary

shares of the
Company held
BEENAT

EERKROHE

734,797,818 (1)

122,466,303

1,778,373,697

122,466,303

1,778,373,697

122,466,303

1,778,373,697

122,466,303

1,778,373,697

122,466,303

1,778,373,697

122,466,303

1,778,373,697

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of the
Company
RaAEe
BITRABRZ
EZAD
(W&

23.25%

3.87%

56.25%

3.87%

56.25%

3.87%

56.25%

3.87%

56.25%

3.87%

56.25%

3.87%

56.25%



(L)—Long Position
L—FE

Notes:

1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share
capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station.

2. The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua's six children under the age of 18, namely
CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya
Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share
capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to WAN Yuhua.

3. The beneficial interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng,
CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour were held by
CHEN Zheng He as trustee for each of his brothers and sisters as named above.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, the Company
has not notified by any person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10 December 2008 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of which is to give
the Directors, senior management and employees of the Group an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate its employees to optimise their performance and efficiency,
and also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

Other Information

S P\
Hit sy

B 7
1. 7B #& Heroic Hour & Fortune Station 2 %% 17 % 78 19 47

49.57% & x5 # & A Heroic Hour ## 13 /& 1 Fortune
StationF BRI R B HD R B °

2. MEBEEISARNU T NMNTF R BIRET
CHEN Li Zi * CHEN Zheng Sheng * [RIE 32 © BR 3=
N CHEN Bo Ling fT & # ¥ & #)78.00% Heroic Hour
EBETRANEEABRBNERE -

3. [ 45 5F * CHENLiZi ~ CHEN Zheng Sheng * R IE i
5% % ¥ A1 CHEN Bo Ling 7 Heroic Hour &) & # #E &
HRMREBUAZITATIHREU ERRZAMS
RFFA o

R-ZE—NEABZ+E B LEXFE
BAL 2O ADFKREIRMAET
At (BRARTEELRBHTRA BN
R 17 S48 B AR 19 o A R 4 B 5 R 4
H IS M AR BN B ENE
SRR AR -

BRESINBERXALOHABRE

ARBDEKRATMERENBE
BHER _ZTTAFAA - THRAD
BRESS((BREFED MR -FF
NFT-ATHERNERAFEEH
BhEdS((ERLMBERBRER
Bl BENERRAREST SMEEA
ENMEERH-—BAREHEERAKRE "
NHBHPRELEFREGRE I
A BERBESAEBENREERNME
MEENMEERERMMWET -
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Other Information
Hit& il

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the date it becoming effective.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share.

BRERE

BREFEIR_ZTAFAA-_TAHRE
EC BRIERTEUBHIER] - B BER
ZHBEXR  BRH/I10F -

RITEREBERES S RARRMEME
fFF B B M RTTEN A BEREM
BITHMROAE TeBBAARE
17 #8 B 10 #930.0% (L AR 4% L T 48 BRIl 7] &
EOMEMBED L) BRESENEES
ER2EEEEWN+ @A BEANET
B {0 B9 B K BB 15 788 58 & (T {7 B ) X
NAEEITHERND H1.0% - A E L8
BREBALRENALEREBRRX
=t 3

BYARRIZBEEANLT(REBREA) K
WEZEMBEAZBRE ASLE
BB ITESFHRAE - UL EEW
T_EAME FARTFTARAEER
RIBUFRATES  AWEZEMB
BAZEBEREBEARRERITRN

01%H) UREBEBEAARARRARLZ
BelREERAERAE)BBBEITLE
Br . ARERRERRAS EEEME-

REEZGETTRINZ2BREER
B REBREZEODAIRES - KU
BERENTENHESTSEE L&B
—ENTESFHBEMG BE&RAEH
TREBBR L BRE 2 BEI0F

BhEsTEEHEESEET BEE
LPRATERZESEN/SBZHR (BAE
e—EEXR)EXRBIMEABRERM
SRRty 2 W (B - (N B BEMEEERA
BRXERBRERMAINEDZEHEN
FIME ¢ K i) B EAE e



As at 1 January and 30 June 2019, no share option was outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme, and there was no share option
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme during the six months ended 30 June 2019.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 10
December 2008. As at 30 June 2019, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were granted, representing
approximately 0.5% of the issued share capital of the Company. No
further options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42 participants
by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0 each. The subscription
price of the pre-IPO share options would be at par value or at
HK$1.19. The pre-IPO share options may be exercised up to 8 June
2019.

A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to two
executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to subscribe
for a total of 840,000 shares held by a director resigned on 28 May
2013 were forfeited on the same date, which was fully exercised up
to 30 June 2019. Movement of these share options during the six
months ended 30 June 2019 were as follows:

Other Information
H th & iy

R-_ZE-NAF-A—-BEXNA=TH"
BRESS TELERARITEZBRE
MBE-_FT-AFAAA=ZTHLERE
ABEBREEBREFETRE 17
6~ FEIHE R

BERARBENBRESS

BALNHEEMBREFER TN
FT_ATHEBER - R-_FT—-HLERX
A=+H8  B& T # 14,532,000 &
B KROBERARRBEETRMNDZH
0.5% ° B} & R 1% B R~ A 3% 5 BB A
a8 Y Ho Al BB A -

EI BB AN R BB R A E A0
BEETRHE2EE HREEB DR
EMEEHTI19BT - ERAREENBER
BAIRN T NFERNANBRITE-

RZZEZNEFENANE RRIRTFRA
HMITE FE A H4,200,0000% 1) & XA FH
BEFERE-EF —FEEHR_Z
—=FEFA-_tN\BEBEEMAZEEA L
840,000 B EERNBE AKX HZE
—T-NAFERNA=ZTH ZERED2
BB ATE - B X AR RS BARE
HE-_Z—hAFA=THIXEAH
MR -

Number of share options
REREHA
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
(o] lingasat Granted Exercise Outstanding as at capital of the
1 January 2019 during during Forfeited 30 June 2018 Company (%)
Exercise price R=Z—N%E theperiod the period during R-Z-N\% L NG|
Name of director  Date of grant (HKD) —-A—H RER REIA  the period ~A=tH ERTRAN Exercise Period
EEER RER TRE(ER) HATE BRFHE THEHE RAREN HARTE  HOBEI() THEHH
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 630,000 — 630,000 - - 0.01 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
FER “ZTAERANR HE ZZ-MELARAZE
ZE-NERANB
Total 630,000 — 630,000 - - 0.01

At
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Other Information

Hit &Y

Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of 10,332,000
Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted to 40
employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to
subscribe for totalling 5,227,320 Shares granted to 28 employees
had been forfeited prior to 2016.

As at 1 January 2019, there was a balance of unexpired and
unexercised options to subscribe for 1,586,760 Shares. On 29 March
2019, WONG Sin Yung exercised his options to subscribe for
630,000 shares, and on 8 June 2019, options to subscribe for
956,760 shares lapsed. The weighted average closing price
immediately prior to the options being exercised was HK$0.17 per
option.

As at 30 June 2019, no pre-IPO share option was outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and save as mentioned above,
no pre-IPO share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
for the six month period ended 30 June 2019. Details of Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 15 under the section
headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” in this
interim report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period
under review.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all such necessary
measures in order to promote good corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) during the six months ended 30 June 2019.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
period under review.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the Corporate Governance Code. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the unaudited
interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019
with the management of the Company and recommended its
adoption by the Board.

Dividends

Following review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2019.

By Order of the Board
CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2019

Other Information
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

DL EF SRk

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

Six months ended 30 June
BEZA~A=1THLA@EA

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARET T ARBT T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
Revenue EEE 4 113,233 125,973
Cost of sales RN (65,842) (69,863)
Gross profit E F 47,391 56,110
Other income HauA 620 1,329
Selling and distribution costs HELSEREX (53,304) (54,809)
Administrative expenses THEA (15,542) (13,505)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised £ 5 & g 2 18 2 5 &
in respect of trade receivables 18 2L B [0 3,056 —
Other expenses Hia &R (13) (539)
Operating loss KEEE (17,792) (11,410)
Finance costs B & KA 5 (783) —
Loss before taxation BaEE 6 (18,575) (11,410)
Taxation 18 7 (2 -
Loss for the period attributableto XA THEBEAEEEZ
owners of the Company HABA (18,577) (11,410)
Loss per share BREE 9
Basic (RMB cents) BEAR(AREAL) (0.59) (0.36)
Diluted (RMB cents) g (AR (0.59) (0.36)




Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

BHGSRaREMEDREE

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZF—NF/NA=+HIENEA

Six months ended 30 June
BEANA=+tHLXEA

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT BN R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)

Loss for the period attributable to owners = QA T A AEBIEE 2B A
of the Company B8 (18,577) (11,410)

Other comprehensive income Htt B2 mE k&=

ltem that may be reclassified subsequentlyto RIRE B B D EE BN 2

profit or loss: HH :
Exchange differences arising on translation of G £S5 E 7 [E 5 = &2
foreign operations 513 3,408

Total comprehensive expense for the AATEEAELEFER
period attributable to owners of the EPELHAE

Company (18,064) (8,002)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHGSMBNRE

As at 30 June 2019 R=T—hFEA=+H

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
AR EIN - — 5 =1+ —H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3 ARET T ARBT T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (')
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KRG 10 103,152 115,021
Right-of-use assets FERHEEE 16,049 —
119,201 115,021
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 40,873 39,610
Right to returned goods asset RETFEZER 1,373 2,392
Trade and other receivables B NEMEKTZIE 11 25,332 36,035
Amounts due from related parties FE UK B8 Bt 75 Fh1E 17(a) 109 4,706
Deposit with bank RITER 12 20,000 20,000
Bank balances and cash RITEFEES 12 53,277 65,483
140,964 168,226
Current liabilities - R=Ri
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E A E R RIE 13 65,614 81,368
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ B 3 5 FRIE 17(a) 17 2,488
Contract liabilities SREE 13,947 7,587
Refund liabilities EEAE 2,312 4,164
Bank borrowing RITHE R 9,650 12,550
Lease liabilities HEEE 8,646 =
Income tax payables FE At BT 15 F1 9,070 9,070
Provision STIREAS 338 338
109,594 117,565
Net current assets RBEEFEE 31,370 50,661
Total assets less current liabilities BREERERDEE 150,571 165,682
Non-current liability kARBEE
Lease liabilities HEESE 2,899 =
Net assets EEFE 147,672 165,682
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital A% 7N 14(a) 277,932 277,878
Reserves 1 14(b) (130,260) (112,196)
Total equity Em A 147,672 165,682




Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BHGSRESZEER

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

Attributable to owners of the Company
KAFEAAER

PRC Exchange
Share Share statutory Capital Merger translation
capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total equity

Other Accumulated

HE
BA  BAHEE iERE  EXRE  ANERE  ERRE  HERE  RHEE  ERAH
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTn ARETn ARETn ARETn AR¥Tn AR%Tn ARETrn AR%Txn
(note 14(a)) (note 14(b)) (note 14(b)) (note 14(b)) (note 14(b)) (note 14(b)) (note 14(b))
(M14(@) (ME140) (HaE14() (HiE14) (HaE14(b)  (REEE14(b)  (KFRE14(0)

At 1 January 2019 (audited) R=E—-NE—F—R

4o
s
Eiy
H
H:l_
7
fiy
I
*
o
o
[V}
2
)
oY
(0]
o
£
i
<

(B2H) 277,878 1,405,500 49,887 (2,126) 8,468 (32,232) 9421  (1,551,204) 165,682
Loss for the period BrER - - - - - - - (18577)||  (185577)
Other comprehensive ~ HIR E fh 2 E Ui
income for the period
Exchange differences  BHNEBXFZER
arising on tranglationof £ &
foreign operations - - - 513 - - 513
Total comprehensive  EIAZE R E/ (X H)
income/(expense) o
for the period - - - 513 - (18,577) (18,064)
Effect of share options IR EEJfE £ 3
— Sharesissueupon  — TR 1E
exercise (note 14) (B zE14) 54 1,194 - - - - 54
— lapse — &N - - - - - 1,580 -
At30 June 2019 RZZ-NEARA
(unaudited) =TR(REER) 217932 1,406,784 49,887 (31,719) 9421  (1,568,201) 147,672
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GRSV RS FOES

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

Attributable to owners of the Company

NGIE 2N
PRC Exchange
Share statutory Capital Merger  translation Other  Accumulated
Share capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Total equity
e
RA  BRAEE EEREE  AARE  A0EE  EXEE  HtEf 0 ZHER  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR AREBTT ARETR AR%T:R
(note 14(a))  (note 14(b))  (note 14(0)  (note 14(b))  (note 14(b))  (note 14(b)  (note 14(b))
(Mat14)  (MEE14)  (MEE140)  (HHsE140)  (HiEE14()  (HEEt4()  (BiEE140)
At 1 January 2018 (audited) R =E—\E—F—H
(BER) 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,448) 9,421 (1,548,424) 170,246
Loss for the period FREE - - - - - - - (11,410 (11,410)
Other comprehensive ~ E 12 EHRA
income for the period
Exchange differences BN EBBREZER
arising on translation EE
of foreign operations = = = = = 3,408 - - 3,408
Total comprehensive ~~ ER2ERA /(X H)
income/(expense) BE
for the period - - - - - 3,408 - (11,410) (8,002)
At30 June 2018 RZZ-N\E/RA
(unaudited) =tR(REER) 217,878 1,400,650 49,887 2814 8,468 (27,040) 9421 (1550834 162,244




Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHGERERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

Six months ended 30 June
BEAB=1THILAEA

2019 2018
- SR T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt BN R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEZ) (REgEZ)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESTH
Loss before taxation 1 Bl B 18 (18,575) (11,410)
Adjustments for: BT E T A
Bank interest income RITH B U A (239) (166)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- HERRETE
equipment 12,076 5,230
Finance costs B & B AN 783 —
Allowance for inventories FERE - 1,282
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories GFEREEXZ#D (747) =
(Reversal of)/impairment loss recognised in 2 5 f& U 318 2 (B 18 &
respect of trade receivables (@) /HER (3,056) 1,658

Gain on disposal of property, plant and BEYH  WERZHERE
equipment (3) (21)

Reversal of obsolete inventories written off BHETF B R EE 2 O (614) =
Operating cash flows before working capital 2:EE ¢ ZHF 2 KEE
changes M= (10,375) (3,427)
Decrease in inventories FEemEd 98 1,841
Decrease in right-of-use assets 1% F 1 ﬁ?tﬁ 2 4,431 —
Decrease in right to returned goods asset REFE 2 #ENRD 1,019 —
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 K H o fE W SR IR 2/
receivables (3 h0) 13,759 (1,093)
Decrease in amounts due from JiE Uk B8 5 5 FRIERL
related parties - 716
Decrease in amounts due to related parties & {~f B8 Bt 75 zX 78 Rk > (2,471) (1,267)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K H b fE A g ORR A (15,754) (3,501)
Increase in contract liabilities SRIABEEN 6,360 —
Decrease in refund liabilities BEEBERD (1,852) -
Decrease in lease liabilities HEBERD (4,323) —
Cash used in operations KESEBMANR S (9,108) (6,731)
Income tax paid B TS () T
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING KRETEFTANE S FE

ACTIVITIES (9,110) 6,731)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHEGSRERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE—

jlqz/\ﬁ +EIM:/\1 ﬂ

Six months ended 30 June

BEANA=1tHIEAREAR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE W ¥ - M= L& E (203) (1,176)
Advance to related parties a1 RS (23) 8)
Bank interest received B UWIR 1T B 239 166
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant BREVE BEMERHED
and equipment Fr 15 A 4 21
Repayment from related parties Ba e 5 (BB KIA 8 10
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING R &EZEBHEL/(FIA)WH
ACTIVITIES e FE 25 (987)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES b & E B
Repayment of bank borrowings EERRITENK (2,900) -
Interest paid 2RFE (329) -
Payment of lease liabilities HES 1 pd 1;1 ~f (454) —
Repayment to related parties B8R A 7 A - (1)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1716 A% 22 £ % P15 5} 38 54 —
New bank borrowings raised FTIGIRITE N - 12,650
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING B & EE (Fi8)/E4AWEE
ACTIVITIES FH (3,629) 12,549
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASH B4 FBHE&ZEY(RD)/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEXFHE (12,714) 4,831
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REBNzZRERESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 65,483 46,050
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXRgH &
CHANGES 508 3,398
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND RHEIR B ERHALZEY
OF THE PERIOD, representing bank
balances and cash BIERTETE KRR 53,277 54,279
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

General and Basis of Preparation

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). lts immediate holding company is Fortune
Station Limited (“Fortune Station”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is owned as to: (1) 49.57%
by Heroic Hour Limited, a company that is beneficially owned
as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company, and 78.00%
by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters; and (2)
50.43% by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

The condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
principal subsidiaries of the Group operate in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of
Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”).

A

BIEBR(EBRZERAER AR (AR
A RAFAEHSTMKILAE
REMNERLARTBEEET BB A
RGMEBERAB([BRAT]) £ e
HEEBRAAEEBERHS
(RBE Z#EB]) T M & Fortune
Station Limited *+ & & 5 £ & A(1)
Heroic Hour Limited # 5 49.57% * #
N 7] #922.00% A% 7 B AN A Rl Z AT
EEREENTEREBLAEET R
#A Mmes T 278.00% 8! & IE %
EEZAUBHKEERFE S KR
REMESEIERMELEHES
50.43% °

ARAREEKBRRATHRER
(AEEDEBZRELEERHERE
NMEANEERERR -

AEEBASRSYBEREIAARE
TAREDIR ARERAKH
TZEMBARETREEENETELR

ERBEHNINEEH

Ao kBAR(TAEEDEE
T -AFANAZTHIEOERL
EMBBRRIOIBREEAEBARS
BERARES EmARA( EWR
A1) P %16 2 58 A R B 15 XA K B
RestEREZES((BEKR e £R
ZEgDEMNBER G ] (EH
Rt LR ) B34 AU K S
w3 o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 8 T R (£H) EREAR QT

General and Basis of Preparation (continued)

The Group had accumulated losses of approximately
RMB1,568,201,000 as at 30 June 2019 and net cash outflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB9,110,000 for
the six months ended 30 June 2019. In view of these
circumstances, the Directors have given consideration to the
future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of finance in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group should be able to continue as a going
concern in the coming year taking into consideration of the
following:

()  The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately
RMB53,277,000 and net current assets of approximately
RMB31,370,000 as at 30 June 2019; and

(i) The Group had unutilised banking facilities of
approximately RMB70,350,000 as at 30 June 2019. The
banking facilities have renewed in March 2019 and will be
extended to March 2021.

In light of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that it is still
appropriate to prepare the condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2019 on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be not able to continue to
operate as a going concern, adjustments would be necessary
to reclassify all non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities, write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities which
may arise. The condensed consolidated financial statements
have not incorporated any of these adjustments.

i BB A ()

R_ZFT—hLEANA=+H"
AR EBRFAEBEEHNARE
1,568,201,000t K B E =T — 1L &F
ANAZTHLERNEAREEHESE
IR & L FRE N A R 9,110,000
T EWBERT RRAREEEZE
BALEERRESTEEMNESESS
MAEATBNE SRR UFHAE
BEt#BRANMBERIFH

L (25 o ST
FEEE o

N

BRGEMERRCREFSERE
HERE ARAEEFZEUTE
MEAR BRRASEERFREMET

-
B

) AEBR-_Z—AFE~A=+
BFEERTETABASHAR
¥ 53,277,0007C & F i B) & E
#) A R #31,370,000 7T °

iy HE—FT—NLF~A=1+8"
AEERAFERARITHEDN A
R #70,350,0007C ° #% R 17 @l
BN S NF=AEHE
B UWERE-_ZE-_—F=Ho

BEARELEAZH ARREFR
R REBREEERUEBE_T
—hERA=tBLERBAKA
MBEmRDEBISE - M AEBERAE
BEBReEERE AAFLA
B SHAFRRBDEERABEEN
PHERRDEERAE WHAEE
BEZEAKWEIZE  ARRAR
ARREBAZAERGE HEHBY
ARERZEAFHERRAR -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

Principal Accounting Policies

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

The accounting policies used in the condensed consolidated
financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 except as
described below.

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the IASB
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1
January 2019:

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IFRS 9  Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to IFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

The adoption of IFRS 16 resulted in changes in the Group’s
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the condensed consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in note 3 below. The application
of the other new and amendments to IFRSs in the current
interim period has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these condensed
consolidated financial statements.

TEETTEHE

BASE VBRI DIRE LKA E

BRE -

BRTRXPTish BIE =T —AFE X
A=tARNBERANEEHBRERMA
BRAMNGHABRRENMFENZRARE
BReEE_—_T-N\F+-_A=1t—
BLEFEHRAVBHRRMMIKESE —
B o

KR HEIRE - REBEERERN
THEKRSFHEAZEERM ZE
M BHREEN ZHER BT
BRE(HIMCETERYBRE
ZRAIDBEASEZEEM B RE
TRAEETRFE_T—NLF—
A—BEERK-

REBHE ME
RERIFE165%

BREMBHRE FANERFEHE
FERIFEINR 2 BfE
EHEN

RERtER]  FTENE MR
F195 2 BB
CHEN

REt A BEARMEE
F285 2 tROREED
EHIEN

RS
BRI ZEFTA

R 1 75 98 5 2
ZEENE(E

—hFE=—F—
+FRAE)
BB 53R E FISHERMNTHE
EAREBZE T
2 E 235

RABRY B REEREI6I R
AEENSAHRELET 1 &
EUMBRRPERNSEEELT
FE - MEARRIR TXEZ R
RERERBEMA REETNE
R G mEENHAERRNAEE
RUARTFEH BB RR KRR K
AEEMBERRETAHBELE
EAFE-
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

2.1 Impacts on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with
respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to the lessee accounting by removing the
distinction between operating lease and finance lease and
requiring the recognition of right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee
accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have
remained largely unchanged. Details of these new
accounting policies are described in note 3. The Group
has applied IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity, where appropriate, at 1
January 2019, and has not restated comparatives for the
2018 reporting period as permitted under the specific
transitional provisions in the standard. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under IAS 17
Leases.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the
practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of
which arrangements are, or contain, leases. It applied
IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases
under IAS 17 and IFRIC-4 were not reassessed. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.

The major impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the
Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements are
described below.

2. TESTHEw
21 EREBBBBEHKEERSE

16 HENTE

Bl BB RS RS EE B 165k B
%&A+%ﬁakTﬁm%%
BETWHET - EBBEERLE
HEMMmERE2HNE7 -
EkEMAHE(RHEERN
KEEEEMRERIN) BR:
EFAENHEaRE &M
ANEHAZEELEERE -
HERM AT ZEMEL B

A HMERERNRFTRE -
ELH S BERAFBENW
A3 AEBE MBI B PE
FA A B 40 B B B 75 R 45 2RI 5B
165 MEB XERNRFTFE
EE-_ZE—hF—A—B#=
HYEHNAER(MER)  #
Rz ERREBREMEEF A
HoWER T — \FREH
MEY R EFT Al 5F
BRI A EEEALE  RA
EREBRERTIBERB S
HEREITHRAEMRE -

ELFUI%Wﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%
169K SEEESERER
ERARE LR R E K
BEMHEE - v R HE %R
H B E 1655 FE A 7 DA AT R
THEHEENEGR - REREE
SHE B 55 17 5% AN B BR BA IS SR
HAUREBZEERESEIR X
WHREEAHEENEHLRTMU
BHFTE Bt BEREREY
BHRELERFIHFEHEENT
EEERAR-_ZE—NE—A—
B2 BRI KEFHAR -

& PR B R B 765 g o 2 I 55 1655%
HEEBRARAMBHRERNE
BEREFMMT -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

2. TEEZTHE @

21 ERBRMBEREELS

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

2.1 Impacts on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as 'operating leases’ under the principles of IAS
17 Leases (except for lease of low value assets and lease
with remaining lease term of twelve months or less). These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was
6.67%.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets and measures
them at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

16 HENTE @)

FEBEREBA

A B EREERFE16
S B - 7N 5= B BE AR B 5t AT AR 1B
BBt ERE17REERA
JIIRIREHEINHEGHEN
HERB(HEEBEEEEMEE R
REEBATBEE12EANEE
BRoM) - BB BEERFGHEE
MREBEFED - LAHEA
BE-Z-NLF—A—BmWRE
EERETHERYPR —F—
NE—-—RF—HERRHEERE
BY N S 15 AR A 18 & 5 KA
E/356.67% °

AEERERAREEREN S
HEANGTEERAREE X
LB S B AT & 3R
fEHAE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

2.1 Impacts on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The following table summaries the impact of transition to
IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the adjustments have not been included.

2. TEZITHE @

21 ERBRMBEREELS

16 HENTE @)

FEBEREBAE

TEBRT T -NF—A—
B ) B8 B B 7% 3R &5 E RIS 165%
BENTE RXHBABTEN

HETEEEA-

Carrying
amount Carrying
previously amount as
reported at Impact on restated at
31 December adoption of 1 January
2018 IFRS 16 2019
BZE2018F MERAEMKRIME #EE2019F
128318 ] & %A 118
REHEHE F16mNEE RESHE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBFTT ARETT AR®TT
(Audited) (Unaudited)
(R EZ) (REER)
Right-of-use assets FHREEE a,b = 20,480 20,480
Amounts due from & i a Bt 5 7k 08
related parties b 4,706 (4,612) 94
Lease liabilities MHEAE a — (15,868) (15,868)
Note: Bt 3 -
(@) As at 1 January 2019, right-of-use assets were measured at an amount (@) BE-_ET—NE—AF—8 A%

equal to the lease liability of RMB15,868,000.

(b) Prepaid rental of RMB4,612,000 as at 31 December 2018 was adjusted

to right-of-use assets.

EERSANEEABRNSET=
BH AR 15,868,000 T ©

(o) Bz )\FE+=-A=+—8"
FENEE ARKA4612,000THE S
FEREEE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Practical expedients applied

On the date of initial application of IFRS 16, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

° not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains
a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date
the Group relied on its assessment made applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC-4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease

o the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics, and

° the accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases.

2. TEEZTHE @

22 BEREDREZNER

e R PR B0 IS B 7 5 S A
Z1632 B8 - A EE KA
BA TR 2438 I B 40 3 B9 B2 B A 2
*

s THEERERBHBIHF
HEHNREAHEXRER
HE- Bk HREBE
BHZARITNAR - %
SEKERNERBER SR
Y RIJ 5517 5% 0 B9 B B 75 e
SEAZREZERES
458 P RO Y fd - DA REE
—BHZFRAEEHER
e RE AR

s HAFAEMEURHNHE
EHAERE-MBAX:
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s BE_ZT—-NF—H—
B ®eREBAR121E A
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

Change in Accounting Policies

Leases

Definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
condensed consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.

IR R

HE

HENTESR

R & BB B 7% ¥R 5 2 B 5165
MRAENETEFPE—BREHRE
W E B A (A RO BE A DA R B
B AZeBHEXEEHE -

AEBEREBEA
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ZEEHE - AEREE/EAEA
WA EMHE RS R —TAEME
EEMEENEERE BEHHE
SE(Ex/HEBTEE12EANE
E)MEBEEEHERI - MEF
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NEARZESRZEZHEMZEENR
BRBHAX BES—RGLEEE
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2 N 25 A0 By PR AR 2RI BR S ©

AEAME

REREE AEERER MRS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

Change in Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using revised discount rate.

° the lease payments change due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of
the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

25T R W B
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HEERE &)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

3. Change in Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. BFFHERNNE @
Leases (Continued) HE @
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBERAE A E)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) [EHREELE &)
The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item NEFBEBPEEESMERETPEF
on the condensed consolidated statement of financial position. YEGHRAEEENERB -
The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use AREBEERABRER 2 ER F365
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment DHETEEFHAERS BME Tt
loss as described in the “Impairment losses on tangible assets” AREBEZE-_Z—N\F+ A=
policy as stated in the Group’s annual consolidated financial T+ —HIWEEES T BEHERATM
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. B EEBRRBEEKF FTIE T

M2 ERNBERK -

4. Revenue and Segment Information 4. EEBERDBER
Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods for the SEEIEAEENTHEYHE
period. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period is as WA o REEEBM A DITT R
follows. wm

Six months ended 30 June
BEAXA=1THLA@EA

2018
= — T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T BN =
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEER)

Revenue from contracts with customers & B #& 49Uk A
Manufacture and sale of household and ~ FKE LA AEE A ZH

personal care products EEMIEE
Hair-care products EEEMm 101,959 112,026
Skin-care products o EEm 1,221 2,339
Other household and personal care BEMRAREAZEREESR

products 10,053 11,608

113,233 125,973
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

4. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue by timing of recognition

L UN LS

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time

KRR

4.

EEHENDIBER @

BWANEREED #

Six months ended 30 June
BEXA=1THLA@EA

2019 2018

= SRR T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T BN =
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) EESETY)

113,233

125,973

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All of the Group’s remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operation decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on a mixture of product lines and
geography. The Directors have chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products. The segments are managed
separately as each operating segment offers different products
which require different production information to formulate
different strategies. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

THREEFENNBRBNEREZ
R E®E

AEBHEEFPEITNARNMAE
RHpBETETHRY—FHED-
AR5 BB B 55 ¥R 5 ZE I B 1557 /O AR
B ITEEZFATHRANZIRS

BRRTHE-

BAOREREFBEDMBERE  AE
BERERRE MARBZHTE
EREZAE BERERR LM
Hzofmlag TBEERRER
BECERMZRRAMLEE - &
DHEREEBENERSHME
BRIERERKEENHREEN - K
SEZITEEBERARERRAEH
BREFIAEHZRNBEDE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

4. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 4. EXEXER D IPE B @)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining THEEZEFEGANFGHRBHNEETZ
performance obligation for contracts with R EH% @
customers (Continued)
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are REBZARENKEES DA :
as follows:
e Hair-care products s EEEM
e Skin-care products e EEEM
e Other household and personal care products o HMAKEAAEEE SR
Also, the CODM is provided with segment information TEEBEERAFTEE L—E{ *ﬁ 78 o 2B U
concerning segment revenue and result. Segment assets and AR D EEERE R nEEE
liabilities are not reported to the CODM regularly. MaEmERETEE Hﬁ BESE:E

ERRERS -

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTEAREERAREWARES
by reportable and operating segments. voR il
For the six months ended 30 June 2019 BE-Z-hEXA=1+BHLEAEA

household and
Hair-care = Skin-care personal care
products products products Total

Htt AR

EEm =EFEEm BAEEER BF
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000

ARMTRT AR%®TR ARMTT AR%®TR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REEK) (REER) (REEK)

Revenue from external K BAINEPE P 2

customers A 101,959 1,221 10,053 113,233
Segment loss o B E 18 (10,581) (192) (5,030) (15,803)
Bank interest income R1T A B U A 239
Other income H g A 378
Corporate and other ROz 4830

unallocated expenses  H i & (2,606)
Finance costs & Bk A (783)

Loss before taxation AT B (18,575)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers (Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2018

TEHREEFENNBRBENEREZ
R Z E% @)

BE_ZT-/\FRA=1+HILXEA

Other
household and

Hair-care Skin-care personal care
products products products Total
Ht xR A&
EEm #EEEm BAEEER A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REER)
Revenue from external K BN S B P 2
customers A 112,026 2,339 11,608 125,973
Segment loss 7 BB & B (4,391) (301) (5,890) (10,582)
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 166
Other income H U A 1,142
Corporate and other R Bc 2 4256 e
unallocated expenses  E i i & (2,136)
Loss before taxation AT E B (11,410)
Segment results represent the loss from each segment without S ZEE SIS D LFAFEES 2 ER - &5
allocation of bank interest income, gain on sales of scrap f & 9 AR R 77 4l B Uk A -~ & = B & W
materials, government grants, net exchange losses, central %5

administration costs, directors’ emoluments and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

= BT FERBX PREEX

A EEHMARBARS P AER
SERERBTIEMAAATZHTES
BEZHESR -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

5. Finance Costs 5. BLE A

Six months ended 30 June
BEANA=+tHLAXEAR
2019 2018
= EPEN —T—\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T BN =
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) EESEETY)

Interest on: FE
— bank borrowings — RITERK 329 —
— lease liabilities — HE&aE 454 -
783 —
The amount was less than RMB1,000. * Z e FBERAR1,0007T -



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

5 B8 & S B 55 3k 2R Bfd 5F

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

Loss Before Taxation 6. MHAIEE
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging (crediting) e EEenBring/ (5t A) T3
the following items: HH :

Six months ended 30 June
BEAA=+tHLAXEA
2019 2018
N —F\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) EESEETY)

Bank interest income |ITH B WA (239) (166)
Allowance for inventories (included in cost 17 & %8 % & (51 A LA L #ER
of inventories recognised as an expense AR X 2 F &K AK)

above) - 1,282
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - HREREKBITE

equipment 12,076 5,230
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 3,884 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of RE ZEWFIERERX

trade receivables - 1,658
Net gain on disposal of property, plant BEYE  HENIRED

and equipment el (3) 21)
Redundancy costs EBEME 390 310
Net foreign exchange losses i8R F5E 1,768 —
Reversal of allowance for inventories FERKEER 2B #

(included in cost of sales) (Bt ASEERKA) (747) —

Reversal of obsolete inventories written-off # Hi 17 & i & 2 [0] #
(included in cost of sales) (Gt ASHE K A) (614) —
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

7. Taxation

U)

(i)

(i)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC
EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE in 2009. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to Enterprise Income Tax for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and 2018.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 as the
Group does not have any assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for these periods.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI for the
current and previous interim periods.

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Pursuant to
the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangements, the
investor established in Hong Kong which the beneficial
owner is holding not less than 25% of the equity interests
of its PRC subsidiaries can enjoy a reduced withholding
tax rate of 5% on the dividend received from its PRC
subsidiaries. The Group did not make any provision of
withholding income tax for the six months ended 30 June
2019 and 2018, respectively since the PRC subsidiaries
had accumulated losses as at 30 June 2019 and 2018.

7. FI1E

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BRETEEEMBIE(EE
FIBBREAD REXMBHREZE
RS ATIN SSE T = N = 0
XA _TTN\F-A—HER
25% °

FRECEMBHRAAEES
78 = R B iy 4b 26 ([ % 37 Bl b
XDEE MESZEROD
EALAZEFE15%HNEEH X -
BET(EMARARTHRIE
MR _FEZNFRAERR
MRt E-Am BE-F
—NFER_Z-NAFARA=
THLEFE BEEMARE
ERABMEEMBNR 2 ER
7 ) o

BE-Z-NAFER=F-N
FRA=Z+THLEEE X&HE
WREIERBHAMNETEMEHR
Z FERRTLA A - BT A I R G 2
EEREH -

REFREHERRBRELES
MR RGN REEEEBER
MRk AERGRFEEEE R
REBRIESNEMBIEA -

BRIBTXAEHETEEH -
BEZZTEZENF—H—HBE X
B 5 BB ARG R R B A
FEHMERH  BE&E2FEM
WESHHMELH  RELBEIL
MIEEENRFEFRHME A
Al MME R 25% @ B A X & P
BA-AATZEXREHF R
BARMKRENERBHNBR
E5% e AR BB A A EH
E-TE-NFERZT—NF
NAZTHIEANEARHEEES
B EhAEEREE_Z —
NWNEER_ZE—N\F A=
BIE/NE AR EFTIRIEIOAT
B/ o
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 #HZE—

Dividends

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the
current and interim periods, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (six months
ended 30 June 2018: Nil).

Loss Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the period of approximately RMB18,577,000 (six months ended
30 June 2018: loss for the period of approximately
RMB11,410,000) and the weighted average number of
approximately 3,162,134,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018:
approximately 3,161,811,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the period.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, respectively,
the diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss per
share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 do not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options because their exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

Movements in Property, Plant and
Equipment

During the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired
property, plant and equipment with a cost of approximately
RMB203,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: approximately
RMB1,176,000).

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,000 was disposed of by the
Group during the six months ended 30 June 2019 (six months
ended 30 June 2018: Nil), resulting in a net gain on disposal of
approximately RMB3,000 (six months ended 30 June 2018: net
gain on disposal of approximately RMB21,000).

10.

’F"E‘JHH,?E‘:‘ ﬁ“ﬁﬁ?lﬂﬁi

—NEFERA=THEIEREA

IR E

RHEIER R A I R B S ER
EARE - ARAEETEZHIKN
BERESHROEIAFHRE (BZE
—E-NFRA=ZTHIERHEA:
;) o

VAR

BREE

ARREEABREZEREARAR
BEEEBEEREBEHABBHOAR
#18,577,000 (B Z =T — N\ &F
ANAZ+TBLERNREARA: HARK
11,410,0007T) KX AW B 277 & 8 K
DN 15 8 #93,162,134,000 % (& =
—E-NEXA=ZFTBIENMEA:
#73,161,811,000/%) =+ &

HE_ZT—NFERZZT—NFAX
A= +E|Jt/\f.ﬂ9}]tﬂﬁf§iﬁ SEE B
ZRTREREIE-

AR ARANBRELARETX
R-FUAEABEBRE_T-HLFE
MZZ2-NFRA=1+HIEXEAA
HEsRETERE  XEMBRTT
{8 AR AN 2 B HO BB ACAE o

W R R

BHE—_ZET—hFEAAA=THIENE
A AEEBAVE BEKEZE
BB AR K 49 & A R #203,000 7T (&
E-FE-—N\FRNA=ZFTHIEAMAE
A4 ANR#1,176,0007T) °

%z?t:%*ﬁﬁ/—\ﬂerElt/—\f
CAEEBEMFENAARE
1000759’3%% W E K& ER B
(Bz-Z—N\NFEXXA=+HI:
) - %ﬁ%ﬁ)\EﬁZSOOOEEﬁJ%E
%% B R EENFRE(EHE
Q*J\E/\ﬂfﬂ_aﬂi/\“)ﬁﬁﬁ
FEK  HAR®21,0007T) ©
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

11. Trade and Other Receivables

1. E5 R EMEYRRKIE

BREBABRBEEERZIZES

Included in trade and other receivables are debtors (net of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables) with the following
ageing analysis presented based on the invoice date, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates:

& W 3 IR (0 bR J&

W iR FORE 2 )

REBOWAER B BN RE DT

R

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
AV =R =l +— A =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (')
Less than 3 months D RA31E A 15,655 23,614
More than 3 months but less than ZR3EAAELK6MEA
6 months 1,380 4,073
More than 6 months but less than ZR6{E ABLHR12ME A
12 months 894 2,966
Total debtors, net of allowance for 15 7 42 58 $0 BR FE UL BR BB
impairment of trade receivables BEEEFE 17,929 30,653
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials R # ¥} £ i 78 1~ 3% 4,419 2,888
Short-term prepaid advertising fee EHENEEE 310 649
Other prepayments H b8~ 3R 1,471 940
Non-income tax receivables FE BT 15 1 e W 5K I8 197 193
Other receivables H b pE Wk 1,006 712
25,332 36,035

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to

its trade customers.

AEBEGTREESEFPNTARGE

H/R30HE90R o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

Deposit with Bank/Bank Balances and Cash

Deposit with bank

As at 30 June 2019, deposit with bank of RMB20,000,000 with
maturity in May 2020 (81 December 2018: RMB20,000,000,
with maturity in May 2019), carries interest at fixed rate of 1.75%
(81 December 2018: 1.75%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

As at 30 June 2019, cash at bank carries interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001% to 0.60% (31
December 2018: 0.001% to 0.60%) per annum.

Trade and Other Payables

Included in trade and other payables are creditors with the
following ageing analysis presented based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period:

12.

13.

K 3 4R 1T 17 R/ 1T R/
RITEERE S

RITERK

R-ZTE—NAERNA=+H" R777F
=B AR ¥20,000,0007T  E-ZT =
EERANBHR-_ZE—NE+=A
=+—H8: AR¥20,000,0007T ' £
TE-NFRAHE)  BEFAE
B17B5% (R —_FE—N\F+=-_A=+
—H :1.75%) o

RTEERRE

R_ZE—AENA=Z+H" 81T
ReREBABRTEREZIHERNX
0.001%£0.60% (R =T — \F+=
A=+—H :0.001%Z0.60%) :+ &
FE -

BEZNHEHMENKE

BIEZEAH BHRIIZBEES
HEMEMNKOETRERBEERZ
BRROMMUT -

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-N\F

AR dEIN - — 5= —H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T AR T T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

0-30 days 0ZE30K 26,635 24,492

31-90 days 31 290K - 5,120

Total creditors BB 26,635 29,612
Payable for acquisition of property, plant & {4 % - Bk B A 5% 45

and equipment W B8 BR 5k 1,933 1,933

Promotion fee payables EHEEE 15,191 22,236

Accrued payroll XN 3,145 3,513

Non-income tax payables JEFTIS F4 FE R IE 3,248 7,404

Other payables and accruals HihEfM X M EETIER 15,462 16,670

65,614 81,368
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—hFENA=+HIEAEA

14. Share Capital and Reserves

14, RN K #E1E

(a) Share capital (a) B
Number of
shares Amount
v S Q] RESHE
000 RMB’000
T AR®T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BRE 0102 TR
Authorised ordinary shares: JETEE AR
At 1 January 2018 (audited), R—ZE—N\FE—H—H
31 December 2018 (audited), (&EW%) —F— N\F
1 January 2019 (audited) and +=-—A=+—8H
30 June 2019 (unaudited) (E#EZ) —E—NF
—RA—RB®E&ER &
—NEFEARA=1+H
(REEZ) 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: cETRkeNZERR :
At 1 January 2018 (audited), RZZE—-N\F—H—H
31 December 2018 (audited), (E#EZ) —E—N\F
1 January 2019 (audited) +=-—A=+—8H
(REWR) —T—NEF
—A—B(&&E%) 3,161,811 277,878
Issue of shares upon exercise of share TE{T{E AR Z B R TR Z
option (note) (B 5E) 630 54
At 30 June 2019 (unaudited) RZE—NFANA=FH
(REEEZ) 3,162,441 277,932

Note: 630,000 share options were exercised during the period and resulted in
the issue of 630,000 ordinary shares of the Company and increase in
share capital of HK$63,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB54,000).

All shares issued during the period ended 30 June 2019
rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

B EE - fEULHAR - A 84 17 {630,000 A% A

EHH ¥+ 817 7630,0008 % & @

BN T 63,0007 (WA AR
*l%%°<54,0007z>E’JHQLK°

BEz_Z—NLFA=+HI1t
HE MEZRTHRERS A
HAREREZERSHEE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

14. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the
Cayman Islands, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders as at 30
June 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the PRC
subsidiary of the Group, Bawang Guangzhou.
Transfers to the reserves are approved by the board
of directors of Bawang Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Limited (“Bawang Beverage”), which are wholly
foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC,
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
(after offsetting prior year losses), as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to
statutory general reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital under the PRC
Company Law and the articles of association of the
entity. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to the equity
shareholders.

14, BAR 7 @)
(b) FELHERAE

U

(i)

IR 2% (B

AR A BA i (B AR ) FE
XAEHERRARKE
RIFRE - FRIFRREE
mIEKMEREMNBHR X
NABRENEERERD
FRHNES BRIAR
AN F B A B AR [ X
RORKRE -

BEREHEEANET
B BE_ZT—HEN
B=+HI  2r18EMF
e BfEEE S EALERE
(RZZE—NF+=-A=
+—B:&)-

T EAE B
TEEEREBIIRIEEH
B AR RIS AR B A B AR SR
BAMTRENEARBLT
BEMORBERRY - &
BRONRHECEZTIEMNE
etk

BEERMEBE(FE) K
HMBERARTTBERE])
TIRPBERIZNINEEE
X EERBEPBE S
BRI R RO - 888 H o A
& D 10%#) 3 i F (7 #
NEFENEBEEEK)E—
REERE BEFHES
HREFNPERRDENZE
EH R A ERERE R/
BARM50% A 1 - W=
ZREBARAEDFA A
7 IR BB AT HETT
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

14. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with accounting policy
adopted in the 2018 annual financial statements.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to US$12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of the non-interest bearing loans to
the subsidiary at an effective interest rate.

14, BRA K 7 @)
(b) REHERAZ@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

B A E fE 48 (D)
—RORE M E R B IR
NEFENERAIAE)
TRABE B RERT A A
M IR A B B HE B 0 L R )
ZEETHKR A ERE
TEROEHR DI DONEM
BRH25% °

BERGEE

BT AR IE B /B E
RAITERELD  HERT
BEHMAABERRE-F
—NEFHRBEENE R
RRNEAHRBTER -

BOtEE

RZEZE+F+=-_A=+
B ARalz=E&K B AT
BIRBEEEZERES)
ER DR AR EEKUKE
% 712,500,00080 & £ &
MEHESE(ZATHRE
EIERBREEEN—RA
AFHAE) At EHE T EIM
B IR 2R 1 4K B 0 B B B AY

ERERMELEAOEE -
B 1
ERFEERRREREE
SN 2 B A R (B A
RE)FMEENZAER
ZE -

H ftb it 48

Hib# B REERRRE
RTRANREERME
HZBREE - ZHEHA
NERF RO EE T
RAZ R EERNEKEE
EREE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—Z—NAFNA=+HIENEA

15. Equity Settled Share-Based Transactions

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 10
December 2008. On 8 June 2009, the Company conditionally
granted certain Pre-IPO share options to the directors, senior
management and employees under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The exercise of these share options would entitle two
of the Company’s directors to subscribe for an aggregate of
4,200,000 shares of the Company, and forty of senior
management and employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000
shares. According to the grant letters signed by the Company
and the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of each share
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is either at par value
of HK$0.1 (four people under this tranche including two
directors), or at HK$1.19, representing a 50% discount to the
offer price of HK$2.38 under the global offering (thirty eight
people under this tranche). Each option granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting period of one to five
years, commencing from the listing date and the options are
exercisable until 8 June 2019.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by Directors and employees during the
current and prior periods:

R EGELURNDAEE

BERALHEBENBRES

ARBEER_ZEZENF+ A+
Bt & & XA F S AR EE
g-R_ZETAFEFXNANB AR
BB HREE N AHABRERRE
BREFEMES SREBEEXE
FEEEREETEXAAREEAE
e TE L EHBRER T AR A
% E EREA 4,200,000 & A
ARG AR+ Z2EREEEM
& B R4 $£10,332,0000% & A &) f%
MEOEF - BREARFHEGEZE
ABITHNETRHE BALAHAEE
AIIE R EAE B THNERBRMDITE
EAEEMESTO1(H AT -
HABEMBZES) K EmT1.19 A
RERBEETHREEBEL238E
50% (= + N ANAEF) - RIEH X
AHABRENBEREFIRLENEND
BRENTEZESHAHA LEMA
Bi—FZ=ZRF FTEBRENA
R-ZEE—AENANBRIITE -

TERBEEEREESEE MR
HEERBEARRERENESBR -

Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding at Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at
1 January 2018 Lapsed during 31 December during the Lapsed during 30 June 2019
Option type BREER (audited) theyear 2018 (audited) period the period (unaudited)
RZB-N\F RZB-N\F RZB-RF
—A-H +=ZA=+-H ~A=1+H
AT ATE RTEH
(BER&) ERRY (BER&) BRTE Bk (RBER)
Pre-IPO Share Option & /it /A B % & Aif
Scheme iR 1,654,000 (67,240) 1,586,760 (630,000 (956,760) =
Exercisable attheend 1 2 HEIARAI1T{ER
of the reporting B
period 1,654,000 1,586,760 —
Weighted average MEFHITERE
exercise price HK$1.92 HK$1.75 HK$1.93 HK$2.20 HK$1.75 N/A

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.44 year.

R=B—NE+=A=+—H @K
{5 95 BB M 40 00 4 F 9 ) £ 2 40 90 750,44

F o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

16. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value 16. B 7%
Measurements of Financial Instruments HE-t

(a) Financial risk factors (a) =@EKREZE

(b)

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The condensed consolidated financial information do not
include all financial risk management information and
disclosures required in the annual financial statements,
and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual
financial statements as at 31 December 2018.

There have been no changes in the risk management
policies since year end.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Group’s financial instruments, including the loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, deposit with bank and
bank balances and cash) and financial liabilities (including
trade and other payables, amounts due to related parties
and bank borrowings), are recorded at amortised cost.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the condensed consolidated financial
statements at 30 June 2019 approximate their fair values
due to short maturities.

(b)

AEEMNESEEAESES
BRFBER : mERR(EE
BB A R E ) - 55 R R
MEIE R -

FHSEEVBRETIEBEFE
MBMEMELKNE %R
BEREEEMPEEEL  EH
—TE-NFEF+ZA=+—HZ
SENFEMBERREK —HLEH

=
=N

BEREAR BREEBRR
BEME-

TR EREER

ZEBEMTRIA BEEX
MEKRE(BREE S ME
FE U FR IR ) R BR 5 S SRR
RITFERMRRITHBEMRE)
NMeRBBE(ERESMEM
FE RIR - R 45 AE A 75 RO 3K
TAAMERITIEF) - AESBRAARA
R RARINEZFMRAS HRE
EYBBRERATMEEMNE R
BEER_FE-NAFANA=T
BREBAIY WEREEER
PR R AEE
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17. Related Party Transactions
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

17.

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the condensed consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
and balances with the related parties during the period:

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the

reporting period:

BB T R %
BERRAMBRRBEIN £ 5
BERBARTTIBEEIZS R
o

@ RE2BEKRZLEHMOT :

Amounts due from/(to)
related parties

W, () BERRE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
aV:I=R =l - — 5 =1+ —H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR®EF T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (e &EZ)
Non-trade related FE 3 HE
Guangzhou Bawang International Hotel & )M 85 T B BR AOH /&
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Bawang Hotel”) AR A A
(note i) TEMNBEBED
(Bt &£ 109 86
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. & M # £ 1t iz ® A R
(“Guangzhou Bawang”) (note ii) ~AEI(TEMEBEED
(Bt &) - 4,612
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain BN /NN e i 1R
Management Co., Ltd. BRAE(TEMN
(“Guangzhou Xiaoxiao”) (note iv) 1) (Bt 3Eiv) - 8
109 4,706
Trade related B2
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products ~ EMNE2AEK R E R
Company Limited (“Guangzhou AR ([EMERBD
Chenming”) (note iii) (B = iii) - (2,274)
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain BNt E R s
Management Co., Ltd. BB (TEIM AN
(“Guangzhou Xiaoxiao”) (note iv) (Bt 7Eiv) 2) =
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging Materials & I /1 /& 3% & % #1 £}
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Qiancai’) (note i)y AR 2 &) ([EINE
1) (Bt =kiii) (15) (214)
(17 (2,488)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

17. Related Party Transactions (cContinued)

@

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the
reporting period: (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

(iv)

Guangzhou Bawang Hotel was ultimately 100% owned by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, the chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Guangzhou Bawang was ultimately 100% owned by Mr. CHEN Zheng
He. As at 31 December 2018, the balance due from Guangzhou
Bawang mainly represented prepayment of rental expenses. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the
board of directors of the Company. The credit term granted by them is
30 days and based on the invoice date. As at 30 June 2019 and 31
December 2018, the amounts due to Guangzhou Chenming and
Guangzhou Qiancai were unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
30 days, based on the invoice date.

Guangzhou Xiaoxiao’s sole director was Ms. WAN Yuhua, wife of Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

@)

17. BBEE A X 5 @)

REHRMKREKREN 2 &R0
™ (&)

f 5t

ENBTBEAAEEEFERTE
M 1T E B R IEH & 4 100% & K8
EE BHRGEHEER 28K

REREE -

(i) & N % T 68 PR IE %5 %% £ 100% & #%
HHE R N\F+tZA=1+—
A BNBEINHREHEIERRE
NS BRAGHERERR 28K
Wik BREE -

(ii) EMNERAMEMNER2HEAR T
EEFEIERBREEBETIN
REKBIZERIH - BEIMNEHEFE
MERGTFHEESRAZEEB L0
HoR=ZZT—AFEXA=+HF=
E-NE+-A=+—0 BHE
MR BA AN RE S N AE SR /0 B B A 4
EIKAE 2B RYIREZA0KRA

BE -

(iv) BMNINEE—EEERELLR
BREURGEERET - BT EM /N
WiEABRARIESR - FHELEH
B AR RWIREREE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

17. Related Party Transactions (continued)

17. BB IR 5 @

(b) During the period, the Group entered into the following (o)
transactions with the related parties:

REBERA NEEEEKT
RIMVIATRS :

Six months ended

HZENEA
2019 2018
N — = \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
Trade related
E5HH
Guangzhou Chenming Purchase of packaging materials (note i) 1,794 592
B M = ER ERAE B 3 MR (B 5E)
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of packaging materials (note i) 42 43
YK PS R RMA (D)
Non-trade related
FEZHE
Guangzhou Bawang Rent of production plant and office
EMNE T premises (notes i and iii) 4,319 4,788
M E A& E R B AR5 A (B 5 Kii)
Guangzhou Bawang Hotel ~ Catering service received (note i) 70 320

BEMBEEE B ERKRSG (LD

Notes:

(i) The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the
prevailing market price.

(i) The utility income was charged to Guangzhou Bawang in relation to the
utility expenses paid on behalf of Guangzhou Bawang.

Wik -

(i

EEZRA/ LARZTHE—REE
GHRRAEEBBRETET 5

REZERBRITHE-

KEBRAREMBERWK - Bt

KREBERBHEMNBERM -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=%

By 55 ¥k 2R BfY 5%

hﬁi/\ﬂ +E|M:/\1

17. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(©

During the period, the Group entered into the following
transactions with the related parties: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

The Group and Guangzhou Bawang entered into renewal lease
contract on 9 August 2016 with 3 years terms of the lease from 9
August 2016, pursuant to which the monthly rental fee for production
premises and office premises were approximately RMB490,000 and
RMB45,000 respectively. The renewed monthly management fee for
production premises and office premises were approximately
RMB310,000 and RMB39,000 respectively. The renewed contract was
terminated and a new contract was signed on 1 December 2017 and
the new terms of the lease were 3 years from 1 December 2017. The
new monthly rental and management fee for the production premises,
office premises and a staff dormitory are approximately RMB719,900.
Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 1
December 2017.

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management personnel during the reporting periods was
as follows:

17. BB

(b)

()

R 5 @)

REBERA NEEEEKT

RIMNIATR S (8B)
B sE - (88)
(iii A5 B E JHEEEEA:ZE—/‘TEJ\

ﬂﬂEuTifﬁﬁﬁﬁ /\E/\ﬂ
natﬁﬁ%:imﬁhmé 1R
BHaEESAANAENARE
2 B 49 A A R % 490,000 7T F145,000
e £EBMBAETAETES
¥ 1% £9310,0007T 1 A K # 39,000
T ZAHNBRILE WR=2F—+
F+-A—BAEIFEHN mHH
HiEFBR—_T—+F+=-A—A8
BERB=F -4ERE WX
MERBEEENTHARRER
BH B AREETI9,9007T ° FHBEHR
NEIZE—tF+ A —BHEMHH

N

RABEERHMTIZERE
(ERMEHANMEAT :

Six months ended 30 June
BEAA=1THLA@EA

2019 2018

= — T \F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBER) (REEEZ)

Short-term employee benefits HHEERF 2,313 927
Contributions to defined contribution & B f#t ZUR /K18 F 51 21

retirement plans 3K 196 66

2,509 993
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HE—ZT—AFNA=+HILEA

18. Commitments

18. B N E&IE

19.

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
AV-ICR - ~— A =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBET T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (')
Capital expenditure in respect of the REBHEE T ERRK
acquisition of property, plant and AR EEEE
equipment contracted for but not MZE - BERERED
provided for in the condensed BIARAERE
consolidated financial statements 343 343

Litigation

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former subcontractor
against Bawang Beverage in People’s Court of Songjiang
District of Shanghai (the “Shanghai Court”) in respect of a
dispute in the material processing contract between the former
subcontractor and Bawang Beverage. In 2013, Bawang
Beverage received a civil order issued by the Shanghai Court,
which accepted the application by the former subcontractor for
property attachment prior to lawsuit to freeze Bawang
Beverage’s bank accounts in the amount of approximately
RMB873,000 or other assets under the name of Bawang
Beverage. In connection with the lawsuit, one of Bawang
Beverage’s bank accounts with an amount of approximately
RMB309,000 was frozen. No accrual was recorded by the
Group as at 31 December 2013 based on the opinion provided
by the PRC legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Beverage.

19. SEEFA

BRi - —RAIDHEBAELSNRIRE
ARER ([ EBEBR]) $Z a1 o 8
BAEEIHRBZENRSNINIA
FalanmBELERRIREBFRA R =
T—=F BFIHRKE T LEEZE
ROREBHRAE EEERIET
BDHEBMNFRMERZERE R
HRTEIHHBETRFOARE
873000t K EE R B THEM
BE - TUFAFT BEIRBHEF
—EARITEFHERE THARK
309,000 - M- E—=F+_-_F=
+—H BREFEAREMBEAE
FIHRNEZEEMREHENER
AEEEARE B FHRIE A ERE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2019 HZE=—ZF—NFNA=+HIENEA

19. Litigation (Continued)

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court
gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable to the
former subcontractor for an amount of approximately
RMB643,000 and a legal cost of approximately RMB19,000.
Accordingly, provision for litigation in amount of approximately
RMB662,000 was recognised as other expense in the profit or
loss and an amount of approximately RMB324,000 was settled
in 2014. As at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2019, the
remaining provision of approximately RMB338,000 has not
been settled.

19. JEEF A @)

EBE—FRARERERZ-ZZ —
MERAZTHBELEHKEH R B
ITHRBMERAAIPERAINOAR
¥ 643,000t B & MH AR K
19,0007C A 5F AR & o Itk Hh » FR AR %
BEA T A R¥662,0007T B # FE R
REEEERTHNEMER A
R#32400TEEHE T — 1Y
F+-_A=+-—"HIFEREE-
BE-Z-\F+-A=+—-8K
TE-HAERNA=THE HARK
338,000 T M) IR EHE M R EE o
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